
 

 

 

 
 

BOARD 

OF 

COMMISSIONERS 
 

 

 

January 02, 2024 

7:00 PM 

 

 



Agenda – Camden County Board of Commissioners January 02, 2024 

Page 2 of 3 

This agenda is only a tentative schedule of matters the Commissioners may address at their meeting and all items 

found on it may be deleted, amended or deferred. The Commissioners may also, in their absolute discretion, 

consider matters not shown on this agenda. 

Special accommodations for the disabled who attend public meetings can be made by contacting the Clerk to the 

Board 24 hours in advance at 252-338-6363, Ext. 311. 

Please silence cell phones. 

Agenda 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

January 02, 2024; 7:00 PM 

Camden Public Library - Boardroom 

118 Hwy 343 North 

Call to Order 

Closed Session - Consultation with County Attorney 

Reconvene Board of Commissioners 

Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance 

ITEM 1. Consideration of Agenda (For discussion and possible action) 

ITEM 2. Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement 

ITEM 3. Public Comments 

It is requested that comments be limited to (2-3) minutes. The length and number of comments 

may be limited upon the Chairman’s discretion due to scheduling and other issues. 

ITEM 4. Old Business (For discussion and possible action) 

A. SMWA System Transfer and Purchase Agreement Update

ITEM 5. New Business (For discussion and possible action) 

A. Tax Report

B. Resolution of Salaries & Compensation

ITEM 6. Board Appointments (For discussion and possible action) 

A. Community Advisory Committee

B. Regional Advisory Council



Agenda – Camden County Board of Commissioners January 02, 2024 

Page 3 of 3 

C. Commissioner Advisory Board Appointments

Recess to South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors 

Reconvene Board of Commissioners 

ITEM 7. Consent Agenda  

A. BOC Meeting Minutes

B. Budget Amendment

C. Pickups, Releases & Refunds

D. Refunds Over $100.00

E. School Budget Amendments

F. Tax Collection Report

G. Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00

H. Senior Center General Purpose Funding FY 23-24

I. Set Public Hearing - Application for Zoning Map Amendment

J. Set Public Hearing - Application for Text Amendment

K. Set Public Hearing - Application for Special Use Permit

ITEM 8. County Manager's Report 

ITEM 9. Commissioners' Reports 

ITEM 10. Information, Reports & Minutes from Other Agencies 

A. Register of Deeds Report

B. Library Report

ITEM 11. Other Matters (For discussion and possible action) 

ITEM 12. Adjourn 

Next Regularly Scheduled Meeting - Monday, February 5th; 7:00 PM 



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Old Business 

 

Item Number: 4.A 

Meeting Date:   January 02, 2024 

 

Submitted By: Erin Burke, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   South Mills Water Association 

 

Attachments:  

 
Summary: 

The Board will be updated on any new information available in regard to the status of the 

SMWA System Transfer and Purchase Agreement. 

4.A

Packet Pg. 4



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 5.A 

Meeting Date:   January 02, 2024 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Lisa Anderson 

 
Item Title   November Monthly Report 

 

Attachments: November20231218104415885 (PDF) 

 

Summary:  November Monthly Report 

 

Recommendation: Review and approve 

5.A

Packet Pg. 5



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 6

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

o
ve

m
b

er
20

23
12

18
10

44
15

88
5 

 (
T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 7

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

o
ve

m
b

er
20

23
12

18
10

44
15

88
5 

 (
T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 8

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

o
ve

m
b

er
20

23
12

18
10

44
15

88
5 

 (
T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 9

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

o
ve

m
b

er
20

23
12

18
10

44
15

88
5 

 (
T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 10

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

o
ve

m
b

er
20

23
12

18
10

44
15

88
5 

 (
T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 11

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

o
ve

m
b

er
20

23
12

18
10

44
15

88
5 

 (
T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 12

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

o
ve

m
b

er
20

23
12

18
10

44
15

88
5 

 (
T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 5.B 

Meeting Date:   January 02, 2024 

 

Submitted By: Stephanie Jackson, 

 Finance 

 Prepared by: Stephanie Jackson 

 
Item Title   Resolution of Salaries & Compensation 

 

Attachments: Salaries & Compensation 2023-2024 (PDF) 

 

Summary: Attached is the Resolution of Camden County Salaries & Compensation. 

There are boards outside of the county that request appointees which are not included in 

the current Resolution as they are not specific Camden County boards.   

 

Recommendation: 

The Board will consider amending the Resolution of Camden County Salaries & 

Compensation to include County appointees serving on advisory boards not currently 

included and receiving compensation.   

5.B

Packet Pg. 13



5.B.a

Packet Pg. 14

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

al
ar

ie
s 

&
 C

o
m

p
en

sa
ti

o
n

 2
02

3-
20

24
  (

R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

f 
S

al
ar

ie
s 

&
 C

o
m

p
en

sa
ti

o
n

)



5.B.a

Packet Pg. 15

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

al
ar

ie
s 

&
 C

o
m

p
en

sa
ti

o
n

 2
02

3-
20

24
  (

R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

f 
S

al
ar

ie
s 

&
 C

o
m

p
en

sa
ti

o
n

)



5.B.a

Packet Pg. 16

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

al
ar

ie
s 

&
 C

o
m

p
en

sa
ti

o
n

 2
02

3-
20

24
  (

R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

f 
S

al
ar

ie
s 

&
 C

o
m

p
en

sa
ti

o
n

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Board Appointments 

 

Item Number: 6.A 

Meeting Date:   January 02, 2024 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Board of Commissioners 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Community Advisory Committee 

 

Attachments: Melissa MacKay CAC Orientation Training Status 20 

hr 10 2023 (003) (PDF) 

 
Summary: 

It is the request of the DHHS Division of Aging and Adult Services that Melissa MacKay be 

appointed to the Community Advisory Committee. 

Recommendation: 

Approval.   

6.A

Packet Pg. 17



 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF AGING AND ADULT SERVICES 
OFFICE OF THE STATE LONG-TERM CARE OMBUDSMAN 

 

Est. 10/30/2022 

 

COMMUNITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE  

ORIENTATION TRAINING STATUS 

 
Applicant’s Name:  Melissa MacKay                                                                                                  

Regional Ombudsman’s Name:  Melissa Hines          

Region: C    County:  Camden 

Date: November 6, 2023        

County Committee:        ☒ Adult Care Home          ☐ Nursing Home          ☐ Joint 

Beginning Date of Orientation Training: November 6, 2023 

 

Assigned Group:   Group C 

 

Assigned Group Schedules: The schedules listed below are based on a 20-hour orientation training.  

 

Week 

Group A ☐ 
Thursday       &        Friday 

10:00 a.m. - 3:30 p.m. 

Group B ☐ 

Monday       &        Wednesday 
10:00 a.m. - 3:30 p.m. 

Group C ☒ 
Monday - Thursday 

10:00 a.m. - 3:30 p.m. 

1 October 12, 2023 October 13, 2023 October 16, 2023 

 
October 18, 2023 

 
November 6, 2023 

November 7, 2023 

November 8, 2023 

November 9, 2023 
2 October 19, 2023 October 20, 2023 October 23, 2023 October 25, 2023  

 

Applicants are expected to complete all of the Community Advisory Committee (CAC) Orientation 

training before being certified, designated, and appointed as a CAC volunteer/member. The training 

consists of the following phases:  

 

Phase I Phase II Phase III 

Independent Study Field Work Orientation Classroom Orientation 

(7) hours of independent 

study/homework (independent, 
web-based, webinars) 

 

(10 – 14) hours of facility 

visitation to speak with staff 
members and residents of the 

facilities you will be serving.          

 

(16 – 20) hours of State Office 

classroom orientation 
1. Modules 1 – 10 

2. Depending on Group 

selection, classes can 
run from 4 – 8 weeks. 

 

 

Section A: 

As a CAC applicant, an attestation form was signed expressing orientation training must be completed 

within 90 days of application. Below is a summary of your application status. 

 
Summary:  You have successfully completed the required 36-hours of CAC orientation training. 

Congratulations on becoming a CAC volunteer! 

 

Application Status:  Approved 
 

6.A.a

Packet Pg. 18

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

el
is

sa
 M

ac
K

ay
 C

A
C

 O
ri

en
ta

ti
o

n
 T

ra
in

in
g

 S
ta

tu
s 

20
 h

r 
10

 2
02

3 
(0

03
) 

 (
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
A

d
vi

so
ry

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e)



WWW.NCDHHS.GOV 

TEL 919-855-3400 • FAX 919-715-0364 
LOCATION: 693 PALMER DRIVE • TAYLOR HALL • RALEIGH, NC 27603 

MAILING ADDRESS: 2101 MAIL SERVICE CENTER • RALEIGH, NC 27699-2101 

Section B:  Only complete this section if in “denied” status or if there were absences in the first 
scheduled initial class orientation training. 

 

Date of Orientation Missed:  Date 1:  Click or tap to enter a date.  Date 2:  Click or tap to enter a date. 

 
Make up Day:  Date 1:  Click or tap to enter a date.  Date 2:  Click or tap to enter a date. 

 

Module:  Choose an item.,   Choose an item.,   Choose an item. 

 
 

 

 
CAC Applicant’s Signature:      DATE:   

 

SLTCO Trainer’s Signature:       DATE:   
 

 

 

 

6.A.a

Packet Pg. 19

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

el
is

sa
 M

ac
K

ay
 C

A
C

 O
ri

en
ta

ti
o

n
 T

ra
in

in
g

 S
ta

tu
s 

20
 h

r 
10

 2
02

3 
(0

03
) 

 (
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
A

d
vi

so
ry

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e)

http://www.ncdhhs.gov/


 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Board Appointments 

 

Item Number: 6.B 

Meeting Date:   January 02, 2024 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Board of Commissioners 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Regional Advisory Council 

 

Attachments: Regional Advisory Council Appointment Request

 (PDF) 

 
Summary: 

It is the request of the Albemarle Commission Area Agency on Aging that Laura Jolley and 

Gwen Wescott be reappointed to the Regional Advisory Council for an additional two-year term. 

Recommendation: 

Approval.   

6.B

Packet Pg. 20



6.B.a

Packet Pg. 21

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

eg
io

n
al

 A
d

vi
so

ry
 C

o
u

n
ci

l A
p

p
o

in
tm

en
t 

R
eq

u
es

t 
 (

R
eg

io
n

al
 A

d
vi

so
ry

 C
o

u
n

ci
l)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Board Appointments 

 

Item Number: 6.C 

Meeting Date:   January 02, 2024 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Board of Commissioners 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Commissioner Advisory Board Appointments 

 

Attachments: Commissioner Advisory Boards_Current 2023 (PDF) 

 
Summary: 

The list of Commissioner Advisory Board Appointments is attached as reviewed and assigned by 

Chair Munro with no changes for 2024.   

6.C

Packet Pg. 22



Advisory Boards w/ Required Commissioner Appointments 
 

 
ADVISORY BOARD 
 

 

CURRENT 
APPOINTMENT 

 

MEETING 
SCHEDULE 

 

TIME 
 

LOCATION 

 
911 Central Communications 

 
Sissy Aydlett 

  
Bimonthly 

 
6 PM 

Public Safety 
Bldg. (EC) 

 
*Albemarle Commission Board of Delegates 

 
Tiffney White 
Sissy Aydlett (alt.) 

 
Monthly 

 
6 PM 

Albemarle 
Commission 
(Hertford) 

 
Albemarle District Jail 

 
Ross Munro 

 
Monthly 

 
2 PM 

Public Safety  
Bldg. (EC) 

 
Albemarle Regional Health Board 

 
Sissy Aydlett 

 
Monthly 

 
6 PM (meal) 

 
ARHS (EC) 

 
Albemarle Rural Conservation & Dev. Council 

 
Troy Leary 

 
Twice annually 

 
Evening 

Agriculture Bldg. 
(Edenton) 

 
Albemarle Rural Planning Organization 

 
Ross Munro 
Troy Leary (alt.) 

 
Quarterly 

 
TBD 

 
TBD 

 
Camden Economic Development Commission 

 
Randy Krainiak 

 
As needed 

 
3:00 PM 

 
Camden Library 

 
Chamber of Commerce (Elizabeth City) 

 
Ross Munro 

 
Monthly 

 
9 AM 

 
TBD 

 
Dismal Swamp Park Advisory Committee 

 
Tiffney White 

 
Quarterly 

 
TBD 

 
TBD 

 
Home & Community Block Grant 

 
Randy Krainiak 

 
Annually 

 
TBD 

Albemarle  
Commission  

 
Juvenile Crime Prevention Council 

 
Randy Krainiak  

6 meetings 
annually 

 
11 AM – 12 PM 

 
Camden Library 

 
Library Board of Trustees 

 
Ross Munro 

 
Quarterly 

 
5:15 PM 

 
Camden Library 

 
*Northeastern Workforce Dev. Consortium 

 
Tiffney White 

 
Twice annually 

 
5:30 PM 

Albemarle 
Commission 

 
Northern Regional Advisory Board – Trillium 

 
Sissy Aydlett 

 
Bimonthly 

 
4:00 – 6:00 PM 

Trillium Health 
Resources 
(Ahoskie)  

 
Parks & Recreation Advisory Board 

 
Troy Leary 

 
Quarterly 

 
5:30 PM 

Camden Center for 
Active Adults 

6.C.a

Packet Pg. 23

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
er

 A
d

vi
so

ry
 B

o
ar

d
s_

C
u

rr
en

t 
20

23
  (

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

er
 A

d
vi

so
ry

 B
o

ar
d



 
Pasquotank-Camden EMS Board (2 reps) 

 
Tiffney White 
Sissy Aydlett 

 
Quarterly 

 
2:00 PM 

 
EMS Admin 
Office (EC) 

 
Public Safety Organization 

 
Troy Leary 

 
Bimonthly 

6:30 PM (meal) 
7:00 PM  

 
Rotation - TBD 

 
Senior Advisory Board 

 
Tiffney White 

 
Quarterly 

 
5:15 PM 

Camden Center for 
Active Adults 

 
Social Services Board 

 
Randy Krainiak 

 
Monthly 

 
5:00 PM 

 
Camden Library 

 
SPCA Advisory Board 

 
Troy Leary 

 
Monthly 

 
5:30 PM 

 
TBD 

 
Tourism Development Authority 

 
Ross Munro 

 
Quarterly 

 
9:30 AM 

 
Camden Library 

 
 
*Most counties appoint the same Commissioner to both the Albemarle Commission Board and the Northeastern Workforce Development 
Consortium in that when the Northeastern Workforce Development Consortium meets it’s usually immediately prior to the Albemarle 
Commission Board of Delegates meeting.   
 
 

 

6.C.a

Packet Pg. 24

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
er

 A
d

vi
so

ry
 B

o
ar

d
s_

C
u

rr
en

t 
20

23
  (

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

er
 A

d
vi

so
ry

 B
o

ar
d



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.A 

Meeting Date:   January 02, 2024 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Board of Commissioners 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   BOC Meeting Minutes 

 

Attachments: bocminutes_112823 (DOCX) 

bocminutes_120423 (DOCX) 

 

7.A

Packet Pg. 25



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

November 28, 2023 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

Emergency Meeting 

November 28, 2023; 4:00 PM 

Camden Public Library Boardroom 

118 Hwy 343 North 

 

Minutes 

 

A duly noticed Emergency Meeting of the Camden County Board of Commissioners was held at 4:00 PM on 

November 28, 2023 in boardroom of the Camden Public Library in Camden, North Carolina.  The purpose of the 

meeting was to consider a contract to purchase three ambulances that are immediately available to the County for 

purchase in the amount of $886,581.00 ($285,527.00 each). The nature of the manufacturing industry is such that 

these ambulances will likely not be available if the Board were to wait to discuss them at a special called meeting or 

at the regular December meeting. The waiting period for new equipment could be up to 18 months if the ready to 

purchase equipment contract is not obtained. This would delay the start of the new EMS program well into 2025.  

 

The meeting was called to order by Chair Tiffney White at 4:00 PM.  Also Present: Vice Chair Ross Munro and 

Commissioners Randy Krainiak, Sissy Aydlett and Troy Leary.   

 

Administration Staff Present: County Manager Erin Burke and Clerk to the Board Karen Davis.   

Also Present: South Mills Volunteer Fire Department Chief Tommy Banks.   

 

County Manager Burke presented the following proposal from Atlantic Emergency Solutions (AES) in regard to the 

availability of three new ambulances for immediate purchase and requested that the Board authorize staff to proceed 

with the contract.   

 

   

7.A.a

Packet Pg. 26

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

11
28

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

November 28, 2023 

  
 

  

7.A.a

Packet Pg. 27

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

11
28

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

November 28, 2023 

  
 

  

7.A.a

Packet Pg. 28

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

11
28

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

November 28, 2023 

  
 

  

7.A.a

Packet Pg. 29

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

11
28

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

November 28, 2023 

  
 

  

7.A.a

Packet Pg. 30

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

11
28

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

November 28, 2023 

  
 

  
 

A grant in the amount of $900,000 was received from the State this year for the purchase of new vehicles and 

equipment for EMS.  Any expense incurred after July 1, 2023 is an eligible expense for those grant funds and the 

County will be reimbursed from the State for the purchase.   

 

Manager Burke noted that the proposal includes a small-quantity discount, a savings of $9,000-$11,000.  In 

conversations with Currituck County, it was recommended that the stretcher not be ordered through this company, 

as they can be purchased at a lower rate directly through Stryker, the system manufacturer.  Currituck County will 

be going to a lease model for the purchase of the stretcher systems, as the equipment expires.  The stretcher systems 

can be ordered by the County separately, have them shipped to AES and AES is qualified to install the systems into 

7.A.a

Packet Pg. 31

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

11
28

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

November 28, 2023 

the ambulances which will retain the manufacturer’s warranty.  The current AES proposal does not include the 

stretcher systems.    

 

Commissioner Krainiak inquired as to the radios and other equipment that will have to be installed in addition to the 

purchase of the ambulances and stretcher systems.  Manager Burke confirmed that the proposal is only for the 

purchase of the truck and box.   

 

Chief Banks confirmed that it will be less expensive to lease the stretcher systems and order them from the 

manufacturer.  He suggested that the County reach out to organizations and agencies that may be willing to donate 

some of the required equipment.   

 

Vice Chair Munro inquired as to the agreement from Fire Chiefs Banks and Jennings to store the ambulances in their 

respective stations.   

 

Manager Burke stated that the conversation at this point is that the existing spaces that we have will be used to store 

ambulances and that those spaces will be where EMS personnel operate out of on a regular basis.  In order to go to 

24-hour service, Pasquotank County would have required the County to build separate facilities to house their 

ambulances.  The system in Camden County will be operated in conjunction with the Fire Departments, and both 

fire chiefs are in agreement.  The official contract end date with Pasquotank County is June 30, 2024.  The County 

Manager in Pasquotank County has agreed that the current contract may be extended, knowing that Camden is 

working towards an end goal of having its own EMS.  A six-month notice to Pasquotank has been requested before 

Camden ends the contract.   

 

Manager Burke added that the search for an EMS Director is now down to the last two candidates.  She anticipates 

an offer to one of the candidates in the next few weeks.   

 

Vice Chair Munro offered a motion to move forward with the purchase of the EMS vehicles as presented.  The 

motion passed unanimously with all five commissioners voting aye and no commissioner voting no. 

 

Commissioner Aydlett offered a motion to adjourn.  The motion passed unanimously with all five commissioners 

voting aye and no commissioner voting no.   

 

There being no further matters for discussion Chair White adjourned the meeting at 4:11 PM.   

7.A.a

Packet Pg. 32

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

11
28

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 4, 2023 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 4, 2023; 10:00 AM 

Organizational and Regular Meeting 

Camden Public Library Boardroom 

118 Hwy 343 North 

 

Minutes 

A Regular Meeting of the Camden County Board of Commissioners was held at 10:00 AM on December 4, 2023 in 

the boardroom of the Camden Public Library in Camden, North Carolina.   

 

CALL TO ORDER  

The meeting was called to order by Chair Tiffney White at 10:00 AM.  Also Present: Vice Chair Ross Munro, 

Commissioners Randy Krainiak, Sissy Aydlett and Troy Leary.     

 

Administration Staff Present: County Manager Erin Burke, County Attorney John Morrison and Clerk to the Board 

Karen Davis.   

 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Pastor Boyce Porter gave the invocation and the Board led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

ITEM 1. CONSIDERATION OF AGENDA        

 

Motion to approve the agenda as presented. 

 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Ross Munro, Troy Leary, Randy Krainiak, Sissy Aydlett, Tiffney White 

 

ITEM 2. CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE STATEMENT     

 

Clerk to the Board Karen Davis read the Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement. 

 

ITEM 3. ELECTION OF BOARD CHAIR         

 

County Attorney John Morrison opened the floor for nominations for Board Chair.   

 

Commissioner Krainiak nominated Commissioner Munro for Chair.  Commissioner Aydlett nominated 

Commissioner White for Chair.   

 

• 3 Votes in favor of Ross Munro for Board Chair – Commissioners Munro, Leary and Krainiak 

• 2 Votes in favor of Tiffney White for Board Chair – Commissioners White and Aydlett 

 

Commissioner Munro was elected on a 3-2 vote to serve as Board Chair. 

 

ITEM 4. ELECTION OF BOARD VICE CHAIR        

 

Chairman Munro opened the floor for nominations for Board Vice Chair. 

 

Chair Munro nominated Commissioner Leary for Vice Chair.  Commissioner Aydlett nominated Commissioner 

White for Vice Chair. 

 

• 3 Votes in favor of Troy Leary for Board Vice Chair – Commissioners Munro, Leary and Krainiak 

• 2 Votes in favor of Tiffney White for Board Vice Chair – Commissioners White and Aydlett 

 

Commissioner Leary was elected on a 3-2 vote to serve as Board Vice Chair. 

 

 

 

 

 

7.A.b

Packet Pg. 33

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
04

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 4, 2023 

ITEM 5. PRESENTATIONS          

 

The following employees were presented service pens for milestone employment anniversaries:  

• Sheriff Kevin Jones – 5 years of service 

• Lt. Joe Riggs – 15 years of service 

 

ITEM 6. PUBLIC COMMENTS          

 

Daniel Humphrey – Good Morning, I come here before you today to hopefully resolve a hardship I am having with 

the Camden Permits Department.  In January 2022 during the height of the COVID pandemic, I sold my house in 

Moyock and was building a new house in Camden Point on Blue Heron Road.  At that time I had 90 days to empty 

out my 40 x 80 garage in Moyock.  I decided to build a new storage building on the lot adjacent to my new house.  I 

ordered a new 30 x 40, 140 MPH rated building from Titan Steel Structures.  After receiving engineered blueprints 

and a site plan I went to Camden Permit Office and the doors were locked.  I called and left a message but did not 

get a call back.   

     I have been an electrical and construction contractor since 1980 and I thought at that time with the pandemic 

and my moving dilemma, I would build it by code and take pictures, then get my permit after the pandemic.  So in 

October I went back to Permits with my application and a week later I received a letter stating that my building was 

not permitted because it did not have a residence on the same property.  I then tried to combine my lots but was also 

denied by Amber Curling.   

     Soon after that I met the ex-Sheriff, Bobby Berry, who was hunting in the area and he informed that there was a 

2013 ordinance approved by the Board of Commissioners allowing storage buildings at Camden Point if the 

property did not perk.  I read the ordinance and found out I met all the criteria allowing me to keep my building.  

Again, I went back to Permits and was denied a permit by Ms. Curling.  This time she told me that the 2013 

ordinance was overridden by a new ordinance.  This is not true.  For a specific ordinance to be overridden it has to 

be done by the Board of Commissioners.  Also, if the ordinance is no longer valid it takes away the rights of the 

newer property owners and renders the property useless because nothing perks down there.  I have a packet for you 

with a picture of a new storage building just built on Edgewater Road on a lot with no residence.  Also, a copy of a 

permit just issued for a storage building on Sailboat Road.   

     I feel like I am being singled out and not being treated fairly.  I pay my property taxes like everyone else.  If the 

Administration Department wants to punish me for doing what I had to do when times were bad, they should fine 

me, but not make me destroy a legal building, which would devastate me financially.   

     I am asking the Board to step in and inform Permits that this ordinance is still in effect and allow me the permit 

to keep my storage building.  Thank you for your time and consideration.   

 

 

ITEM 7. NEW BUSINESS          

 

A. Approval of Bonds – Erin Burke 

 

 Bond approval for the following:  

• Board of Commissioners - County of Camden  

• Finance Officer - County of Camden  

• Finance Officer - Camden Tourism Development Authority  

• Finance Officer - Courthouse/Shiloh Fire Commission  

• Finance Officer - South Mills Fire Commission  

• Finance Officer - Joyce Creek Drainage District  

• Register of Deeds - County of Camden  

• Sheriff - County of Camden  

• Tax Assessor & Collector - County of Camden  

 

Motion to approve the bonds as presented. 

 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Sissy Aydlett 

AYES: Ross Munro, Troy Leary, Randy Krainiak, Sissy Aydlett, Tiffney White 

 

 

 

 

7.A.b

Packet Pg. 34

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
04

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 4, 2023 

B. Resolution 2023-12-01 Establishing the 2024 Regular Meeting Schedule – Erin Burke 

 

 
 

Motion to adopt Resolution 2023-12-01 Establishing the 2024 Regular Meeting Schedule. 

 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Ross Munro, Troy Leary, Randy Krainiak, Sissy Aydlett, Tiffney White 

 

C. 2024 Holiday Schedule – Erin Burke 

 

 

7.A.b

Packet Pg. 35

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
04

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 4, 2023 

Motion to approve the 2024 Holiday Schedule as presented. 

 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Ross Munro, Troy Leary, Randy Krainiak, Sissy Aydlett, Tiffney White 

 

D. Tax Report – Lisa Anderson 

 

 
 

 

7.A.b

Packet Pg. 36

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
04

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 4, 2023 

 
 

 

30 Largest Unpaid - Real 

 

 
 

30 Oldest Unpaid - Real 

 

 
 

 

 

 

7.A.b

Packet Pg. 37

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
04

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 4, 2023 

30 Largest Unpaid – Personal 

 

 
 

30 Oldest Unpaid – Personal 

 

 
 

Motion to approve the Tax Report as presented. 

 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Ross Munro, Troy Leary, Randy Krainiak, Sissy Aydlett, Tiffney White 

 

E. Proposed SMWA System Transfer and Purchase Agreement  

 

County Attorney John Morrison stated that the agreement presented in the meeting packet is incomplete in that the 

agreement makes reference to various Exhibits and Schedules which have not yet been developed.  Counsel for 

SMWA has stated that SMWA wishes to close by December 29th.  Mr. Morrison stated the Board may approve the 

agreement as written but should be subject to approval of the County Manager in consultation with Counsel.  Upon a 

question by Chair Munro, Mr. Morrison added that SMWA is responsible for submitting the referenced exhibits and 

schedules.   

 

 

7.A.b

Packet Pg. 38

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
04

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 4, 2023 

  

  
 

7.A.b

Packet Pg. 39

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
04

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 4, 2023 

   

  
 

7.A.b

Packet Pg. 40

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
04

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 4, 2023 

  

  

7.A.b

Packet Pg. 41

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
04

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 4, 2023 

  

  
 

7.A.b

Packet Pg. 42

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
04

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 4, 2023 

  

  
 

7.A.b

Packet Pg. 43

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
04

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 4, 2023 

  

  
 

7.A.b

Packet Pg. 44

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
04

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 4, 2023 

 
 

Attorney Morrison added for the public’s benefit and information, that this agreement conveys all assets of South 

Mills Water Association to the County for $1.   

 

Motion to authorize the County Manager, in consultation with the County Attorney, to enter into the process 

for the system transfer and purchase of the South Mills Water Association and authorize the County 

Manager to sign the final sales agreement. 

 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Ross Munro, Troy Leary, Randy Krainiak, Sissy Aydlett, Tiffney White 

 

F. Williams Brothers Farms Proposed Lease – Erin Burke 

 

South Mills Water Association has for many years leased its vacant land to Williams Brothers Farms on a year-to-

year basis.  The current term ends December 31, 2023.  The tenant has requested a renewal for 2024.  As the 

potential new owner of the property, the Board will consider the intent of the County to renew the lease for an 

additional year.   

 

Motion to authorize the County Manager, in consultation with the County Attorney and upon taking 

ownership of the property, to enter into a one-year lease with Williams Brothers Farms to match terms 

currently in place per the existing agreement.   

 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Ross Munro, Troy Leary, Randy Krainiak, Sissy Aydlett, Tiffney White 

 

G. Lease Renewal of County Property (390 US 158) – Erin Burke 

 

The Board will consider a lease renewal of county-owned property located at 390 US 158 to Pasquotank River 

Yacht Club, Inc. for a term of five years.  In consideration of the lease, Pasquotank River Yacht Club, Inc. will pay 

the county an annual rent of $3,600.00. 

 

 

 

7.A.b

Packet Pg. 45

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
04

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 4, 2023 

Motion to authorize the County Manager, in consultation with the County Attorney, to enter into a five-year 

lease renewal with Pasquotank River Yacht Club, Inc. effective January 1, 2024.   

 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Ross Munro, Troy Leary, Randy Krainiak, Sissy Aydlett, Tiffney White 

 

H. Lease Renewal of County Property (151 Gumberry Road) – Erin Burke 

 

The Board will consider a lease renewal of the county-owned property located at 151 Gumberry Road to Success 

Academy for 3’s and 4’s for a term of five years.  In consideration of the lease, Success Academy for 3’s and 4’s 

will pay the county a monthly rent of $1,980.00. 

 

Motion to authorize the County Manager, in consultation with the County Attorney, to enter into a five-year 

lease agreement renewal with Success Academy for 3’s and 4’s effective January 1, 2024.  

 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Troy Leary 

AYES: Ross Munro, Troy Leary, Randy Krainiak, Sissy Aydlett, Tiffney White 

 

ITEM 8. BOARD APPOINTMENTS         

 

A. Parks & Recreation Advisory Board – Appointment of Jill Inscore 

 

Motion to appoint Jill Inscore to the Parks & Recreation Advisory Board. 

 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Ross Munro, Troy Leary, Randy Krainiak, Sissy Aydlett, Tiffney White 

 

South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors       

 

Chairman Munro recessed the Board of Commissioners and called to order the South Camden Water & Sewer 

District Board of Directors Meeting.   

 

Public Comments – None 

 

Consideration of the Agenda  

 

Motion to approve the agenda as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Tiffney White, Ross Munro, Randy Krainiak, Troy Leary, Sissy Aydlett 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7.A.b

Packet Pg. 46

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
04

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 4, 2023 

New Business 

 

A. Monthly Report – Chuck Jones 

 

 
 

 

7.A.b

Packet Pg. 47

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
04

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 4, 2023 

 
 

 
 

7.A.b

Packet Pg. 48

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
04

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 4, 2023 

 
 

Motion to approve the monthly report as presented.  

 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Ross Munro, Troy Leary, Randy Krainiak, Sissy Aydlett, Tiffney White 

 

Mr. Jones gave the following update on the status of the well project: 

• As of Friday, December 1st, 124 linear feet of the raw water transmission had been installed. 

• Started at the valve near the County’s well and are working towards the new well site. 

• Project is moving forward rapidly. 

 

Upon inquiry from Chair Munro, Manager Burke stated that the County was granted a $10 million from the state for 

water and sewer projects.   

 

Motion to adjourn South Camden Water & Sewer Board of Directors. 

 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Randy Krainiak  

AYES: Ross Munro, Troy Leary, Randy Krainiak, Sissy Aydlett, Tiffney White 

 

Chairman Munro adjourned the South Camden Water & Sewer Board of Directors and reconvened the Board of 

Commissioners. 

 

ITEM 9. CONSENT AGENDA          

 

A. BOC Meeting Minutes – November 6, 2023 Meeting Minutes on file in the Clerk to the Board’s office as 

well as the County website; incorporated herein by reference. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7.A.b

Packet Pg. 49

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
04

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 4, 2023 

B. Budget Amendments  

 

  
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7.A.b

Packet Pg. 50

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
04

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 4, 2023 

C. Pickups, Releases & Refunds 

 

 
 

D. Refunds Over $100 

 

 
 

 

7.A.b

Packet Pg. 51

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
04

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 4, 2023 

E. Tax Collection Report  

 

 
 

F. Vehicle Refunds Over $100 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7.A.b

Packet Pg. 52

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
04

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 4, 2023 

G. 2024-2025 Annual Budget & CIP Calendar 

 

  
 

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. 

 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Ross Munro, Troy Leary, Randy Krainiak, Sissy Aydlett, Tiffney White 

 

ITEM 10. COUNTY MANAGER’S REPORT        

County Manager Erin Burke included the following in her report: 

• Auditor’s report expected in January. 

• Pre-qualification from USDA received to start the loan process for the new high school. 

• Updated progress reports on the new high school are published on the high school web site. 

• Next High School Steering Committee Meeting upcoming. 

• Attended regularly-scheduled monthly meetings in November. 

 

ITEM 11. COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS         

 

Commissioner White 

• South Camden Volunteer Fire Department is sponsoring Cookies with Santa on December 10th, 1:00 – 3:00 

PM. 

• “More in the Basket” for Seniors to be held on December 7th, 10 AM at the Camden County Center for 

Active Adults. 

• Thank you to South Mills Volunteer Fire Department for organizing the Christmas Parade.   

 

Commissioner Krainiak 

• Appreciation and a job well done to everyone involved in the 2023 South Mills Christmas Parade.   

 

Commissioner Aydlett  

• Camden County Tree Lighting 

• Attended ARHS Christmas Party 

• A lot of hard work going into getting EMS up and going.   

 

 

7.A.b

Packet Pg. 53

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
04

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 4, 2023 

ITEM 12. INFORMATION, REPORTS & MINUTES FROM OTHER AGENCIES    

Provided for information only – no action taken. 

 

A. Library Report  

 

 
 

B. Register of Deeds Report 

 

 

7.A.b

Packet Pg. 54

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
04

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 4, 2023 

 
 

ITEM 13. OTHER MATTERS          

None. 

 

CLOSED SESSION – PERSONNEL 

 

Motion to go into Closed Session to discuss personnel and to include Sheriff Jones and Chief Deputy Judd. 

 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Ross Munro, Troy Leary, Randy Krainiak, Sissy Aydlett, Tiffney White 

 

Motion to come out of Closed Session. 

 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Sissy Aydlett 

AYES: Ross Munro, Troy Leary, Randy Krainiak, Sissy Aydlett, Tiffney White 

 

RECONVENE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 

Chairman Munro reconvened the Board of Commissioners. 

 

Motion to approve the creation of a Major position in the Sheriff’s Office and direct the Sheriff to proceed 

accordingly.   

 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Sissy Aydlett 

AYES: Ross Munro, Troy Leary, Randy Krainiak, Sissy Aydlett, Tiffney White 

 

 

 

7.A.b

Packet Pg. 55

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
04

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 4, 2023 

ITEM 14. ADJOURN           

 

Motion to adjourn. 

 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Sissy Aydlett 

AYES: Ross Munro, Troy Leary, Randy Krainiak, Sissy Aydlett, Tiffney White 

 

There being no further matters for discussion Chairman Munro adjourned the meeting at 11:00 AM.   

7.A.b

Packet Pg. 56

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
04

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.B 

Meeting Date:   January 02, 2024 

 

Submitted By: Stephanie Jackson, 

 Finance 

 Prepared by: Stephanie Jackson 

 
Item Title   Budget Amendment 

 

Attachments: 23-24 BA 021 Full time Meter Reader for Water

 (DOC) 

 

7.B

Packet Pg. 57



                                                       2023-24-BA021 

 

CAMDEN COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the County of Camden, North Carolina 

that the following amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year 

ending June 30, 2024. 

 

Section 1.  To amend the General Fund as follows: 

 

                 AMOUNT   

ACCT NUMBER           DESCRIPTION OF ACCT            INCREASE     DECREASE 

     

Revenues  

30350720-430100 Sale of Water                                          $47,642 

   

Expenses  

307200-502000        Salaries         31,200 

307200-505000        FICA          2,387 

307200-506000        Health         8,352 

307200-506200        Life            115 

307200-507000        Retirement        4,028 

307200-507100        401K         1,560 

 

This Budget Amendment is made to appropriate funds from Sale of Water to the Salary & 

Benefits expense lines for a full time Meter Reader. 

 

This will result in no change to the Contingency of the General Fund. 

 

Balance in Contingency  $40,000.00 

 

 

Section 2.  Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk to the  

Governing Board and to the Budget Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction.  

Adopted this 2nd day of January, 2024. 

 

       

______________________________ _________________________________  

  

Clerk to Board of Commissioners    Chair, Board of Commissioners 

 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 58

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

3-
24

 B
A

 0
21

 F
u

ll 
ti

m
e 

M
et

er
 R

ea
d

er
 f

o
r 

W
at

er
  (

B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.C 

Meeting Date:   January 02, 2024 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Pickups, Releases & Refunds 

 

Attachments: Pickups, Releases & Refunds (PDF) 

 

7.C

Packet Pg. 59



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 60

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ic
ku

p
s,

 R
el

ea
se

s 
&

 R
ef

u
n

d
s 

 (
P

ic
ku

p
s,

 R
el

ea
se

s 
&

 R
ef

u
n

d
s)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.D 

Meeting Date:   January 02, 2024 

 

Submitted By: Teri Smith, 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Teri Smith 

 
Item Title   Refunds Over $100.00 

 

Attachments: REFUNDS OVER $100.00 DECEMBER, 2023 (PDF) 

 

Summary:   Refunds Over $100.00 December, 2023 

 

Recommendation:   Review and Approve 

7.D

Packet Pg. 61



7.D.a

Packet Pg. 62

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

E
F

U
N

D
S

 O
V

E
R

 $
10

0.
00

 D
E

C
E

M
B

E
R

, 2
02

3 
 (

R
ef

u
n

d
s 

O
ve

r 
$1

00
.0

0)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.E 

Meeting Date:   January 02, 2024 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Schools 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   School Budget Amendments 

 

Attachments: School Budget Amendments (PDF) 

 

7.E

Packet Pg. 63



7.E.a

Packet Pg. 64

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



7.E.a

Packet Pg. 65

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



7.E.a

Packet Pg. 66

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



7.E.a

Packet Pg. 67

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



7.E.a

Packet Pg. 68

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



7.E.a

Packet Pg. 69

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.F 

Meeting Date:   January 02, 2024 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Tax Collection Report 

 

Attachments: Tax Collection Report (PDF) 

 

7.F

Packet Pg. 70



7.F.a

Packet Pg. 71

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 C

o
lle

ct
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

T
ax

 C
o

lle
ct

io
n

 R
ep

o
rt

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.G 

Meeting Date:   January 02, 2024 

 

Submitted By: Teri Smith, 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Teri Smith 

 
Item Title   Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 

 

Attachments: VEHICLE REFUNDS OVER $100.00 NOVEMBER, 23

 (PDF) 

 

Summary:  Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 November, 2023 

 

Recommendation:   Review and Approve 

7.G

Packet Pg. 72



7.G
.a

P
acket P

g
. 73

Attachment: VEHICLE REFUNDS OVER $100.00 NOVEMBER, 23  (Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.H 

Meeting Date:   January 02, 2024 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Board of Commissioners 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Senior Center General Purpose Funding FY 23-24 

 

Attachments: Senior Center General Purpose Funding FY 2023-2024

 (PDF) 

 
Summary: 

State appropriation for Senior Centers through the 2023 Session of the NC General Assembly - 

Senior Center General Purpose Funding: Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Application. 

Recommendation: 

Approval.   

7.H

Packet Pg. 74



7.H.a

Packet Pg. 75

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

en
io

r 
C

en
te

r 
G

en
er

al
 P

u
rp

o
se

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 F
Y

 2
02

3-
20

24
  (

S
en

io
r 

C
en

te
r 

G
en

er
al

 P
u

rp
o

se
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 F

Y
 2

3-
24

)



7.H.a

Packet Pg. 76

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

en
io

r 
C

en
te

r 
G

en
er

al
 P

u
rp

o
se

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 F
Y

 2
02

3-
20

24
  (

S
en

io
r 

C
en

te
r 

G
en

er
al

 P
u

rp
o

se
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 F

Y
 2

3-
24

)



7.H.a

Packet Pg. 77

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

en
io

r 
C

en
te

r 
G

en
er

al
 P

u
rp

o
se

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 F
Y

 2
02

3-
20

24
  (

S
en

io
r 

C
en

te
r 

G
en

er
al

 P
u

rp
o

se
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 F

Y
 2

3-
24

)



7.H.a

Packet Pg. 78

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

en
io

r 
C

en
te

r 
G

en
er

al
 P

u
rp

o
se

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 F
Y

 2
02

3-
20

24
  (

S
en

io
r 

C
en

te
r 

G
en

er
al

 P
u

rp
o

se
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 F

Y
 2

3-
24

)



7.H.a

Packet Pg. 79

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

en
io

r 
C

en
te

r 
G

en
er

al
 P

u
rp

o
se

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 F
Y

 2
02

3-
20

24
  (

S
en

io
r 

C
en

te
r 

G
en

er
al

 P
u

rp
o

se
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 F

Y
 2

3-
24

)



7.H.a

Packet Pg. 80

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

en
io

r 
C

en
te

r 
G

en
er

al
 P

u
rp

o
se

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 F
Y

 2
02

3-
20

24
  (

S
en

io
r 

C
en

te
r 

G
en

er
al

 P
u

rp
o

se
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 F

Y
 2

3-
24

)



7.H.a

Packet Pg. 81

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

en
io

r 
C

en
te

r 
G

en
er

al
 P

u
rp

o
se

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 F
Y

 2
02

3-
20

24
  (

S
en

io
r 

C
en

te
r 

G
en

er
al

 P
u

rp
o

se
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 F

Y
 2

3-
24

)



7.H.a

Packet Pg. 82

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

en
io

r 
C

en
te

r 
G

en
er

al
 P

u
rp

o
se

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 F
Y

 2
02

3-
20

24
  (

S
en

io
r 

C
en

te
r 

G
en

er
al

 P
u

rp
o

se
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 F

Y
 2

3-
24

)



7.H.a

Packet Pg. 83

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

en
io

r 
C

en
te

r 
G

en
er

al
 P

u
rp

o
se

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 F
Y

 2
02

3-
20

24
  (

S
en

io
r 

C
en

te
r 

G
en

er
al

 P
u

rp
o

se
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 F

Y
 2

3-
24

)



7.H.a

Packet Pg. 84

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

en
io

r 
C

en
te

r 
G

en
er

al
 P

u
rp

o
se

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 F
Y

 2
02

3-
20

24
  (

S
en

io
r 

C
en

te
r 

G
en

er
al

 P
u

rp
o

se
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 F

Y
 2

3-
24

)



7.H.a

Packet Pg. 85

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

en
io

r 
C

en
te

r 
G

en
er

al
 P

u
rp

o
se

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 F
Y

 2
02

3-
20

24
  (

S
en

io
r 

C
en

te
r 

G
en

er
al

 P
u

rp
o

se
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 F

Y
 2

3-
24

)



7.H.a

Packet Pg. 86

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

en
io

r 
C

en
te

r 
G

en
er

al
 P

u
rp

o
se

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 F
Y

 2
02

3-
20

24
  (

S
en

io
r 

C
en

te
r 

G
en

er
al

 P
u

rp
o

se
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 F

Y
 2

3-
24

)



7.H.a

Packet Pg. 87

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

en
io

r 
C

en
te

r 
G

en
er

al
 P

u
rp

o
se

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 F
Y

 2
02

3-
20

24
  (

S
en

io
r 

C
en

te
r 

G
en

er
al

 P
u

rp
o

se
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 F

Y
 2

3-
24

)



7.H.a

Packet Pg. 88

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

en
io

r 
C

en
te

r 
G

en
er

al
 P

u
rp

o
se

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 F
Y

 2
02

3-
20

24
  (

S
en

io
r 

C
en

te
r 

G
en

er
al

 P
u

rp
o

se
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 F

Y
 2

3-
24

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.I 

Meeting Date:   January 02, 2024 

 

Submitted By: Amber Curling, 

 Planning Board 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Set Public Hearing - Application for Zoning Map 

Amendment 

 

Attachments: 1_AgendaSummary_SmithRezoningConsentAgenda

 (DOCX) 

2_RezoningStaffReport (DOCX) 

3_-ZoningMapAmendmentApplication (PDF) 

4_NeighborhoodMeetingsSummary (PDF) 

5_NeighborhoodMeetingNoticeReceived (PDF) 

6_Deed (PDF) 

7_Plat9-20 (PDF) 

 

Agenda summary and supporting documentation attached. 

7.I

Packet Pg. 89



Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

        

Meeting Date:   January 2, 2024 

 

Attachments:   Rezoning Staff Findings of the Facts Report, Application, Neighborhood Meeting 

Summary, Neighborhood Meeting Notification Letter, Deed, Plat 

 

Submitted By: Planning Department  

 

Item Title:  Application for Zoning Map Amendment UDO 2023-10-85 

 

Summary: 

 

Brian Smith has requested a map amendment for approximately 10 acres from the Rural Residential 

(RR) and Neighborhood Residential (NR) zoning districts to only the Rural Residential (RR) zoning 

district.  The 10 acres consist of an approximately 10-acre parcel located at the northwest corner of 

Upton Road and Seymour Drive.  The parcel is located in Courthouse Core Village and Courthouse 

Township. 

 

The first neighborhood meeting held on September 26, 2023 did not meet the Unified Development 

Ordinance requirements.  The second neighborhood meeting was held on November 24, 2023.  On 

January 17, 2024 the Planning Board meeting will be held. 

 

The CAMA Land Use Plan was adopted by the Camden County Board of Commissioners on April 4, 

2005.  The proposed zoning change is inconsistent in that the CAMA Future Land Use Maps have the 

majority of property identified as Medium Density Residential and Low Density Residential.  

Conservation with a small area on the property is identified as Conservation.  The most restrictive, 

Medium Density Residential, designated by a mixture of single-family dwelling types in relatively close 

proximity to core village.  The district intended to restrict the encroachment of incompatible business 

uses in established residential areas. 

 

The County’s Comprehensive Future Land Use Map (Adopted 2012) identifies the parcel as Rural 

Residential District One to Two Acre lots of residential areas as a buffer between rural preservation 

areas and more intense development.  The proposed zoning change is consistent. 

 

Recommendation: 

 

Motion to set Public Hearing for February 5, 2024. 

7.I.a

Packet Pg. 90

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_A
g

en
d

aS
u

m
m

ar
y_

S
m

it
h

R
ez

o
n

in
g

C
o

n
se

n
tA

g
en

d
a 

 (
S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



` 

 

 

 

Staff Finding of the Facts Report 

 

UDO 2023-10-85 

 Zoning Map Amendment  

Ordinance 2023-02-01 
 

 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

 

 

File Reference: 2023-10-85 

Project Name:           Parcel NW corner Upton 

Road and Seymour Drive 

PIN:    02-8934-02-56-8337-0000 

 

Applicant:  Brian Smith 

Address:   202 McPherson Road 

                  South Mills, NC 27976 

Phone:       804-386-7811 

Email:       bcsmith53@hotmail.com 

 

Agent for Applicant:  Owner  

Address: same as above 

Phone:  same as above 

Email:   same as above 

 

Current Owner of Record:  Brian Smith and 

Lindsey M. LaFlamme 

 

Meeting Dates: 

November 24, 2023 Neighborhood Meeting 

January 17, 2023 Planning Board Meeting   

 Application Received: October 12, 2023 

By:  Amber Curling, Planning 

 

Application Fee paid:  $650.00 

 

Completeness of Application:  Application is 

generally complete 

 

Documents received upon filing of application 

or otherwise included:  

A. Rezoning Application  

B. Neighborhood Meeting Comments 

C. Neighborhood Meeting Notification Letter 

D. Deed 

E. Plat 

 

 

 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

REQUEST:  The request is for a zoning map amendment from Rural Residential and Neighborhood 

Residential Zoning Districts to Rural Residential Zoning District only.   

 

Description:  The parcel identified by parcel ID number 02-8934-02-56-8337-0000 is, located on the 

north west corner of Upton Road and Seymour Drive in the Courthouse Township and Courthouse Core 

Village.  The parcel approximately 10.08 total acres with approximately 5 acres Rural Residential and 

approximately 5 acres Neighborhood Residential. 

 

7.I.b

Packet Pg. 91

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

_R
ez

o
n

in
g

S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
  (

S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



` 

Zoning Map Amendment from the Rural Residential and Neighborhood Residential 

Zoning Districts to only the Rural Residential Zoning District: 
 

Rural Residential (RR) Purpose Statement (Article 151.3.5.3) 

The Rural Residential (RR) district is established to accommodate low density residential neighborhoods 

and supporting uses on lots near bona fide farms and agricultural areas in the rural portion of the 

County.  The district is intended to accommodate residential development in ways that will not interfere 

with agricultural activity or negatively impact the rural character of the County. One of the primary tools 

for character protection is the requirement to configure residential subdivisions of more than five lots as 

conservation subdivisions.  The conservation subdivision approach seeks to minimize the visibility of 

new residential development from adjacent roadways through proper placement and screening.  The 

district accommodates several differing agricultural uses and single-family detached homes.  It also 

allows supporting uses like educational facilities, parks, public safety facilities, and utilities.  District 

regulations discourage uses that interfere with the development of residential dwellings or that are 

detrimental to the rural nature of the district. 

 

Rezoning from the following Zoning District: 

Neighborhood Residential Zoning District 151.3.5.5 

The Neighborhood Residential (NR) district serves as a transition district from the rural and suburban 

portions of the County to areas proximate to village centers and major commercial corridors. The district 

is intended to accommodate single-family detached homes in a neighborhood setting at moderate 

densities. Mobile and manufactured homes on individual lots, conservation subdivisions, and 

agricultural uses are limited in order to preserve the district’s neighborhood character. Manufactured 

homes are not allowed on lots within 5,280 linear feet of a village center boundary. The district’s 

40,000-square-foot minimum lot area may be reduced when lots are within one mile of a designated 

village center boundary and served by public sewer. District regulations discourage uses that interfere 

with the development of residential neighborhoods or that are detrimental to the district’s single-family 

detached neighborhood character.  

 

SITE DATA 
Size of Lots:   Approximately 10 acres  

Flood Zone:   Most of parcel is X 

Zoning District(s):  Rural Residential (RR) and Neighborhood Residential (NR) 

Existing Land Uses:  Vacant 

 

Adjacent Zoning & Uses: 

 North South  East West 

Zoning Neighborhood 

Residential (NR) 

Rural 

Residential 

(RR) 

Rural Residential 

(RR 

Rural Residential 

(RR and 

Neighborhood 

Residential (NR) 

Use Wetlands, Residential 

Lots and Church 

 

Residential 

Lots 

Residential Lots,  

& Farmland 

Open Space 

Wetlands Vacant 

Property 

Proposed Use(s) – manufacturing and production of wood with sawmill and sales of products 

7.I.b

Packet Pg. 92

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

_R
ez

o
n

in
g

S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
  (

S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



` 

 

Vicinity Map 

1 Mile Buffer 

Courthouse 
Core Village 

7.I.b

Packet Pg. 93

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

_R
ez

o
n

in
g

S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
  (

S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



` 

 

Zoning Map 

Neighborhood 
Residential 

Rural 
Residential 

Working Lands 

Village 

Commercial 

7.I.b

Packet Pg. 94

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

_R
ez

o
n

in
g

S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
  (

S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



` 

 

Very High Land 
Suitability 

Land Suitability Map 

Moderate Land 
Suitability 

Very Low Land 
Suitability 

7.I.b

Packet Pg. 95

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

_R
ez

o
n

in
g

S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
  (

S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



` 

 

Wetlands Map 

Managed 
Pineland 

7.I.b

Packet Pg. 96

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

_R
ez

o
n

in
g

S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
  (

S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



` 

 

Flood Zone X 

Not located in Watershed 

Floodplain & Watershed Map 

Flood Zone AE 

7.I.b

Packet Pg. 97

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

_R
ez

o
n

in
g

S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
  (

S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



` 

  

2035Comprehensive Future Land Use Plan 

Village Mixed 
Use 

1-2 acre Rural 
Residential  

Rural 
Preservation 

Village Center 

7.I.b

Packet Pg. 98

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

_R
ez

o
n

in
g

S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
  (

S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



` 

 

Low Density 
Residential on 

1-2 acres or 
greater 

Medium 
Density 

Residential 

Community 
Core 

CAMA Future Land Use Map 

Conservation 

7.I.b

Packet Pg. 99

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

_R
ez

o
n

in
g

S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
  (

S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



` 

 

Water lines on Upton Road and 
Seymour Drive 

7.I.b

Packet Pg. 100

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

_R
ez

o
n

in
g

S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
  (

S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



` 

 

INFRASTRUCTURE & COMMUNITY FACILITIES 

Water:  Water lines are located adjacent to property along Upton Road and Seymour Drive 

Sewer:  Not available. 

Fire District:  South Camden Fire District. 

Schools:  Proposed zoning will no impact on Schools.   

Traffic:  Proposed zoning should no impact on Traffic.    

 

CONSISTENCY with PLANS and MAPS  

 

CAMA Land Use Plan Policies & Objectives: 

 

 Consistent ☐  Inconsistent ☒ 

 

The CAMA Land Use Plan was adopted by the Camden County Board of Commissioners on April 4, 

2005.  The proposed zoning change is inconsistent in that the CAMA Future Land Use Maps has the 

majority of property identified as Medium Density Residential and Low Density Residential.  

Conservation with a small area on the property is identified as Conservation.  The most restrictive, 

Medium Density Residential designated by a mixture of single-family dwelling types in relatively close 

proximity to core village.  The district is intended to restrict the encroachment of incompatible business 

uses in established residential areas. designated to provide for effective long-term management of 

significant limited or irreplaceable areas. 

 

2035 Comprehensive Plan 

 

 Consistent ☒  Inconsistent ☐ 

   

The County’s Comprehensive Future Land Use Map (Adopted 2012) identifies the parcel as Rural 

Residential District One to Two Acre lots of residential areas as a buffer between rural preservation 

areas and more intense development.  

 

Comprehensive Transportation Plan  

 

 Consistent ☒  Inconsistent ☐ 

 

 Property abuts Seymour Drive and Upton Road. 

 

Other Plans officially adopted by the Board of Commissioners 

 N/A 
 

 

7.I.b

Packet Pg. 101

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

_R
ez

o
n

in
g

S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
  (

S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



7.I.c

Packet Pg. 102

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

_-
Z

o
n

in
g

M
ap

A
m

en
d

m
en

tA
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



7.I.c

Packet Pg. 103

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

_-
Z

o
n

in
g

M
ap

A
m

en
d

m
en

tA
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



7.I.d

Packet Pg. 104

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_N
ei

g
h

b
o

rh
o

o
d

M
ee

ti
n

g
sS

u
m

m
ar

y 
 (

S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



CUI 

 
                                                         
                                                                               27 Nov 23 
 
From: LT Brian C. Smith, Mrs. Lindsay Smith 
To: Camden County, NC Board of Commissioners 
 
Subj: Neighborhood Meeting 
 
1.  This letter serves to communicate the information and dialogue regarding the neighborhood 
meeting that took place on 24 November 2023 at 9 am on the property located at 000 Upton 
Road, Camden NC 27921. 
 
2.  Meeting attendees were notified via mail.  All notifications were mailed on 8 November 2023. 
 
3.  Landowners that were notified about the meeting: 
 
 a.  BENNETT, DANNY 
 b.  LDM DEBRITO LLC 
 c.  KIGHT, JOHN H II 
 d.  LEARY, VICTOR & KATHY 
 e.  HARRISON, RHONDA JONES 
 f.  ALBERTSON, THOMAS RYAN 
 g.  BRAY, BETTY S 
 h.  BOSEMAN, SUZANNE S LE 
 i.  CHURCH OF THE REDEEMER  INC 
 j.  CAMDEN METHODIST CHURCH 
 k.  CAMDEN LAND AND TIMBER 
 l.  CAMDEN COUNTY 
 m.  A&B BUILDING INCORPORATED 
 n.  FIELDS, BRANDON L 
 o.  A&B BUILDING INCORPORATED 
 p.  YOUNG, ELVIN B JR 
 q.  CLARK, DAVID (Property formally owned by Richard Harris) 
 
4.  List of meeting attendees: None 
 
5.  Description of the development process presented to the attendees.  None 
 
6.  A summary of attendee comments, ideas, suggestions from citizens to be incorporated into the 
development proposal: None 
 
 
 
 
                                     B. C. SMITH 
 
 
                               

7.I.d

Packet Pg. 105

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_N
ei

g
h

b
o

rh
o

o
d

M
ee

ti
n

g
sS

u
m

m
ar

y 
 (

S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



 27 Nov 23 
 
From: LT Brian C. Smith, Mrs. Lindsay Smith 
To: Camden County, NC Board of Commissioners 
 
Subj: Proposal Dialogue 
 
1.  This letter serves to communicate the information regarding the three requests submitted to 
the board for approval. 
 
2.  We are respectfully requesting you approve all 3 applications for the following reasons: 
 
 a.  Special Use Permit/UDO Text Addendum – We are requesting to bring our sawmill 
operation back to the property at 000 Upton Road.  The relocation of the sawmill would allow for 
us to mill lumber on site for our agriculture barn that we are currently planning to build in 2024 as 
well as mill lumber for other projects that we have planned for our farm.  We are also requesting to 
sell some of the additional lumber to help offset the costs of the farm and equipment as well.  We 
would like to locate the sawmill in the back of our property, near the future Camden well site and 
the current Mediacom operations building.  Locating the mill operation in the back of the property 
would help to keep a neat clean appearance from the road.   
 
 The Camden County UDO does not currently have any restrictions or guidance what so 
ever regarding the use of sawmills.  The UDO text addendum that we are requesting is geared 
towards small independent sawmill operators, like us, who want to provide products to the local 
community that you cannot find within the county or local counties.  The vast majority of 
sawmill work that we do is for agricultural projects since rough cut lumber cannot easily be used 
in residential applications.  This will allow farmers, who represent a large majority or Camden 
residents, to get extremely low priced lumber to the exact specifications that they need to operate 
their farms.   
 
 b.  Rezoning request – We are also requesting the entire property be rezoned to rural 
residential vice half rural residential and half neighborhood residential.  The current zoning of 
the property makes no sense since the area that is zoned neighborhood residential has zero road 
frontage and can only be accessed through the rural residential area.  We have no intent of ever 
subdividing this property for the purpose of selling lots therefore there is no reason for this 
property to be zoned neighborhood residential.   
 
 
3.  Concerns: 
 

a.  Noise – At the first neighborhood meeting, one resident, Tommy Harrison, said noise was 
one of his complaints with our proposal.  He specifically cited an instance on a Sunday 
where he heard beeping all day long.  After his complaint, I did research regarding decibel 
levels of my equipment and I found that the sawmill, while cutting a log, reached a decibel 
level of 75 when I was within 3 ft and the skid steer reached a decibel level of 76 when I 
was within 3 ft.  When I took decibel readings again at approximately 150 ft away both of 
these levels were under the county mandated 60 decibel rating to be considered a noise 
complaint.  This is one of the major reason why relocating the sawmill to the back of the 
property where it is surrounded by woods on 3 sides where houses are closest.  I estimate 
these houses to be approximately 150 feet from the proposed mill location as well.  The 
distance plus the trees in between the mill site and their house will ensure that their 
operation will not produce sound levels above 60 db.  The one piece of equipment that I 
use commonly that does produce noise levels above 60 db is a chainsaw.  Since the 
neighborhood meeting, I have purchased three battery operated chainsaws which I intend 

7.I.d

Packet Pg. 106

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_N
ei

g
h

b
o

rh
o

o
d

M
ee

ti
n

g
sS

u
m

m
ar

y 
 (

S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



to use primarily for operations.  These battery operated chainsaws do not produce a decibel 
level over 60 dbs.  There will be times when I must use a more powerful 2 stroke gasoline 
powered chainsaw and I recommend these times be limited to 8 am to 7 pm Monday to 
Saturday and 12 pm to 6 pm on Sunday.  As far as the specific instance that Mr. Harrison 
cited during our meeting, I’m assuming he was referring to when I rented an excavator and 
was clearing part of the land in anticipation of farming activities.  There are no noise 
regulations concerning farming activities in the county and I do not own nor do I use an 
excavator in conjunction with my sawmill.  My sawmill does not have a function to beep.  
My skid steer does have a beeping function, only in reverse, but I would never run my skid 
steer in reverse all day long in conjunction with sawmill activities as that makes no sense.   

 
b.  Property Value – Mr. Harrison also stated that he did not want the sawmill operation 

because he did not know how it would affect his property value.  I cannot see Mr. 
Harrison’s property from my property nor can you see my property from Mr. Harrison’s 
property.  I consider this to be a moot point. 

 
 

c. Traffic – Mr. Kight said his tenant was concerned with traffic and/or large trucks driving 
on the easement on the road that goes to the back of my property where the Mediacom 
building is located.  Only Mediacom employees and county employees going to the well 
site use this road.  I do not intend on using this as the main road to conduct sawmill 
operations.  I intend on using the long road that I built this year to conduct sawmill 
operations.  Also, sawmill operations generate far less traffic than the sunflower farm 
generates where you will see numerous cars pulling in and out of the driveway on a daily 
basis. 
 

4.  We intend to build our forever home on this property as soon as we have enough money 
saved for the substantial down payment.  We intend to continue farming for many years to come 
continuing to grow the sunflowers on the main areas visible from the road and are looking to add 
other things like blueberry and raspberry bushes.  In the near future and when we build our home 
there, we will add animals to the farm also. 
 
5.  Our family has resided in Camden County since 2015.  I have served in the United States 
Navy for 17 years now through several submarine tours, aircraft carrier tour and numerous tours 
both overseas and stateside in surface warfare and cyber warfare.  I have volunteered as a coach 
the past two years and will coach youth basketball this year with Camden County Parks and Rec 
both during the regular season and all-star tournaments.  Lindsay is a state and nationally 
certified pharmacy technician in both North Carolina and Virginia and is employed by UNC 
Medical Center.  She has coached youth basketball in the past for Camden County Parks and Rec 
and is currently on the Camden County Youth League Board.  All five of our children attend 
Camden county schools and excel.  All five made straight As last year and are involved in sports 
in both Parks and Rec and school sports.  We are a very tight knit community oriented family 
and we are asking that you pass these three applications to help us live our dream in Camden.  I 
will retire from the U.S. Navy in a few short years and intend to reside in Camden County for the 
rest of my days on this earth. 
 
6.  Thank you very much for your time and consideration regarding this matter. 
 
 
 
                                     B. C. SMITH 
 

7.I.d

Packet Pg. 107

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_N
ei

g
h

b
o

rh
o

o
d

M
ee

ti
n

g
sS

u
m

m
ar

y 
 (

S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



7.I.e

Packet Pg. 108

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_N
ei

g
h

b
o

rh
o

o
d

M
ee

ti
n

g
N

o
ti

ce
R

ec
ei

ve
d

  (
S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



7.I.f

P
acket P

g
. 109

Attachment: 6_Deed  (Set Public Hearing - Application for Zoning Map Amendment)



7.I.f

P
acket P

g
. 110

Attachment: 6_Deed  (Set Public Hearing - Application for Zoning Map Amendment)



7.I.g

Packet Pg. 111

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

_P
la

t9
-2

0 
 (

S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.J 

Meeting Date:   January 02, 2024 

 

Submitted By: Amber Curling, 

 Planning & Zoning 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Set Public Hearing - Application for Text Amendment 

 

Attachments: 1-CA-AgendaSummary_TextAmendment

 (DOCX) 

2-2023-10-84-_TextAmmendmentApp (PDF) 

3-OrdinanceForTextAmendments_2023-02-02

 (DOCX) 

 

Agenda summary and supporting documentation attached.   

7.J

Packet Pg. 112



Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

        

Meeting Date:   January 2, 2024 

 

Attachments:   Ordinance 2023-02-02 for Text Amendment, Application 

 

Submitted By: Planning Department 

 

Item Title: Text Amendment Application UDO 2023-10-84 to section 151.4.5 of the Camden 

County Code of Ordinances of Camden County, NC 

 

 

Summary: 

 

Brian Smith has submitted a text amendment application.  The attached proposed ordinance presents the 

requested text change to the Camden County Unified Development Ordinance (151.4.5).  The request is 

necessary to permit a sawmill in the rural residential zoning district. 

 

The request would add to Article 151.4 Use Regulations in the Common Accessory Use Table 4.5.4 an 

accessory use of Mobile/Portable or Stationary Sawmill permitted by use or by special use permit with 

specific standards outlined in section 151.4.5.5.V Standards for Specific Accessory Uses “Sawmill”. 

 

The Planning Board meeting is scheduled for January 17, 2024. 

 

Recommendation: 

 

Motion to set Public Hearing for February 5, 2024. 

 

7.J.a

Packet Pg. 113

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

-C
A

-A
g

en
d

aS
u

m
m

ar
y_

T
ex

tA
m

en
d

m
en

t 
 (

S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

T
ex

t 
A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



7.J.b

Packet Pg. 114

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

-2
02

3-
10

-8
4-

_T
ex

tA
m

m
en

d
m

en
tA

p
p

  (
S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
T

ex
t 

A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



7.J.b

Packet Pg. 115

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

-2
02

3-
10

-8
4-

_T
ex

tA
m

m
en

d
m

en
tA

p
p

  (
S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
T

ex
t 

A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



Ordinance No. 2023-02-02 
An Ordinance 

Amending the Camden County Code of Ordinances 
Camden County, North Carolina 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS as follows: 
 
Article I:  Purpose 
 
The purpose of this Ordinance is to amend Chapter 151 of the Camden County Code of Ordinances of Camden 
County, North Carolina, which was originally adopted by the County Commissioners on January 1, 1998, and 
subsequently revised February 4, 2019 and subsequently amended, and as otherwise incorporated into the Camden 
County Code. 
 
Article II:  Construction 
 
For purposes of this Ordinance strikethrough words (strikethrough) shall be considered deletions to existing 
language. New language of proposed ordinance shall be shown in italics, underlined, and highlighted (italics). 
 
Article III:  Amended Chapter 151 as amended of the Camden County Code which shall read as follows: 
 

TABLE ERROR! REFERENCE SOURCE NOT FOUND.: COMMON ACCESSORY 
USE TABLE 

“P”= Permitted        “S”= Permitted with Special Use Permit       “·”= Prohibited 

ACCESSORY USE 

 RESIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL IND.  

A
C

C
. 
U

S
E
-

S
P

E
C

IF
IC

 

S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

 

C
P

 

W
L

 

R
R

 

S
R

 

N
R

 

V
R

 

C
C

 

V
C

 

M
X

 

H
C

 

M
C

 

L
I 

H
I 

P
D

  

Accessory Dwelling Unit · P P P P P P P P P P · · A 

Error! 
Reference 

source 
not 

found. 

Amateur Ham Radio · P P P P P P P P P P P P A 

Error! 
Reference 

source 
not 

found. 

Boat Lifts P P P P P P P P P P P P P A 

Error! 
Reference 

source 
not 

found.  

Boat Ramps P P P P P P P P P P P P P A 

Error! 
Reference 

source 
not 

found. 

Cemetery, Family or Religious 
Institution 

· P P P S · P · · P · · · A 

Error! 
Reference 

source 
not 

found. 

Child Care, Incidental · P P P P P P P P · · · · A 

Error! 
Reference 

source 
not 

found.  

7.J.c

Packet Pg. 116

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

-O
rd

in
an

ce
F

o
rT

ex
tA

m
en

d
m

en
ts

_2
02

3-
02

-0
2 

 (
S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
T

ex
t 

A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



TABLE ERROR! REFERENCE SOURCE NOT FOUND.: COMMON ACCESSORY 
USE TABLE 

“P”= Permitted        “S”= Permitted with Special Use Permit       “·”= Prohibited 

ACCESSORY USE 

 RESIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL IND.  

A
C

C
. 
U

S
E
-

S
P

E
C

IF
IC

 

S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

 

C
P

 

W
L

 

R
R

 

S
R

 

N
R

 

V
R

 

C
C

 

V
C

 

M
X

 

H
C

 

M
C

 

L
I 

H
I 

P
D

  

Community Agriculture S P P P P P P P P · · · · A 

Error! 
Reference 

source 
not 

found. 

Docks, Piers P P P P P P P P P P P P P A 

Error! 
Reference 

source 
not 

found.  

Drive-Through · · · · · · P P · P · P · A 

Error! 
Reference 

source 
not 

found. 

Excavation · P · · · · · · · P P P P A 

Error! 
Reference 

source 
not 

found. 

Gasoline Sales · · · · · · P P S P P P · A 

Error! 
Reference 

source 
not 

found. 

Home Occupation · P P P P P P P P P P · · A 

Error! 
Reference 

source 
not 

found.  

Horse Stable · P P P P P · · · · · · · A 

Error! 
Reference 

source 
not 

found. 

Housing for Poultry · P P P P · P · · P · · · A 

Error! 
Reference 

source 
not 

found. 

Ice House · · · · · · P P P P P P · A 

Error! 
Reference 

source 
not 

found.  

Outdoor Display and Sales · · · · · · P P P P · P · A 

Error! 
Reference 

source 
not 

found. 

Outdoor Storage 
(Nonresidential) 

· · · · · · P P P P P P P A 

Error! 
Reference 

source 
not 

found.  

7.J.c

Packet Pg. 117

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

-O
rd

in
an

ce
F

o
rT

ex
tA

m
en

d
m

en
ts

_2
02

3-
02

-0
2 

 (
S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
T

ex
t 

A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



TABLE ERROR! REFERENCE SOURCE NOT FOUND.: COMMON ACCESSORY 
USE TABLE 

“P”= Permitted        “S”= Permitted with Special Use Permit       “·”= Prohibited 

ACCESSORY USE 

 RESIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL IND.  

A
C

C
. 
U

S
E
-

S
P

E
C

IF
IC

 

S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

 

C
P

 

W
L

 

R
R

 

S
R

 

N
R

 

V
R

 

C
C

 

V
C

 

M
X

 

H
C

 

M
C

 

L
I 

H
I 

P
D

  

Parking of Boats or Watercraft · P P P P P P P P P P P P A 

Error! 
Reference 

source 
not 

found. 

Parking of Heavy Trucks, 
Trailers in Residential Districts 

· P P S S · · · · · · · · A 

Error! 
Reference 

source 
not 

found. 

Produce Stands · P P P · · P P P P · P · A 

Error! 
Reference 

source 
not 

found.  

Recreational Vehicles · P P P · · · · · P · · · A 

Error! 
Reference 

source 
not 

found. 

Retail Sales from a Vehicle · S · · · · P P P P P P P A 

Error! 
Reference 

source 
not 

found. 

Sawmill   S            4.5.5.W 

Solar Energy Equipment · P P P P P P P P P P P P A 4.5.5.WX  

Underground Storage Tanks · S · · · · P S · P P P P A XXY 

Wind Energy Conversion 
Facility, Small 

· P S S S S P P S P P P P A Y 

 
 

4.5.5 STANDARDS FOR SPECIFIC ACCESSORY USES 
W  Sawmill 

1.  Mobile or Portable Sawmill 
a. A sawing or cutting machine used to turn logs into lumber, whether trailered or truck-mounted. 
b. Capable of easily being moved, set up and operated on a site. 
c. Not attached or fixed in location 

2. Stationary Sawmill 
a. A fixed structure mounted on a foundation for the purpose of turning logs into lumber. 
b. Includes the entire operational area: 

i. log sorting yard (s)  
ii. milling machine (s) 
iii. sorting area (s) 
iv. storage area (s) 
v. administration area (s) 
vi. maintenance (s) 

  

W.   X.  Solar Energy Equipment 
Solar energy equipment shall comply with the following standards: 

X.  Y.  Underground Storage Tanks 

7.J.c

Packet Pg. 118

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

-O
rd

in
an

ce
F

o
rT

ex
tA

m
en

d
m

en
ts

_2
02

3-
02

-0
2 

 (
S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
T

ex
t 

A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



Y. Z.  Wind Energy Conversion Facility, Small 
 

7.J.c

Packet Pg. 119

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

-O
rd

in
an

ce
F

o
rT

ex
tA

m
en

d
m

en
ts

_2
02

3-
02

-0
2 

 (
S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
T

ex
t 

A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.K 

Meeting Date:   January 02, 2024 

 

Submitted By: Amber Curling, 

 Planning & Zoning 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Set Public Hearing - Application for Special Use Permit 

 

Attachments: 1_AgendaSummary_SmithSUP-ConsentAgenda

 (DOCX) 

3-SUPApplication (PDF) 

4_NeighborhoodMeetingsSummary (PDF) 

5_-NeighborhoodMeetingNoticeReceived (PDF) 

6_Deed (PDF) 

7_Plat (PDF) 

 

Agenda summary and supporting documentation attached.   

7.K

Packet Pg. 120



Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

        

Meeting Date:   January 2, 2024 

 

Attachments:   Special Use Application, Neighborhood Meetings Summary, Deed and Plat 

 

Submitted By: Planning Department  

 

Item Title:  Application for Special Use Permit 

 

Summary: 

 

Mr. Brian Smith has requested a Special Use Permit on a 10.1-acre parcel located on the Northwest 

corner of Seymour Drive and Upton Road with parcel ID 02-8934-02-56-8337.0000.  The request is to 

permit use of a portable sawmill to manufacture wood products on site and then sell said products 

produced on the property.  

 

Recommendation: 

 

Motion to set Public Hearing for February 5, 2024. 

7.K.a

Packet Pg. 121

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_A
g

en
d

aS
u

m
m

ar
y_

S
m

it
h

S
U

P
-C

o
n

se
n

tA
g

en
d

a 
 (

S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

S
p

ec
ia

l U
se

 P
er

m
it

)



7.K.b

Packet Pg. 122

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

-S
U

P
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
S

p
ec

ia
l U

se
 P

er
m

it
)



7.K.b

Packet Pg. 123

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

-S
U

P
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
S

p
ec

ia
l U

se
 P

er
m

it
)



7.K.b

Packet Pg. 124

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

-S
U

P
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
S

p
ec

ia
l U

se
 P

er
m

it
)



7.K.c

Packet Pg. 125

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_N
ei

g
h

b
o

rh
o

o
d

M
ee

ti
n

g
sS

u
m

m
ar

y 
 (

S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

S
p

ec
ia

l U
se

 P
er

m
it

)



CUI 

 
                                                         
                                                                               27 Nov 23 
 
From: LT Brian C. Smith, Mrs. Lindsay Smith 
To: Camden County, NC Board of Commissioners 
 
Subj: Neighborhood Meeting 
 
1.  This letter serves to communicate the information and dialogue regarding the neighborhood 
meeting that took place on 24 November 2023 at 9 am on the property located at 000 Upton 
Road, Camden NC 27921. 
 
2.  Meeting attendees were notified via mail.  All notifications were mailed on 8 November 2023. 
 
3.  Landowners that were notified about the meeting: 
 
 a.  BENNETT, DANNY 
 b.  LDM DEBRITO LLC 
 c.  KIGHT, JOHN H II 
 d.  LEARY, VICTOR & KATHY 
 e.  HARRISON, RHONDA JONES 
 f.  ALBERTSON, THOMAS RYAN 
 g.  BRAY, BETTY S 
 h.  BOSEMAN, SUZANNE S LE 
 i.  CHURCH OF THE REDEEMER  INC 
 j.  CAMDEN METHODIST CHURCH 
 k.  CAMDEN LAND AND TIMBER 
 l.  CAMDEN COUNTY 
 m.  A&B BUILDING INCORPORATED 
 n.  FIELDS, BRANDON L 
 o.  A&B BUILDING INCORPORATED 
 p.  YOUNG, ELVIN B JR 
 q.  CLARK, DAVID (Property formally owned by Richard Harris) 
 
4.  List of meeting attendees: None 
 
5.  Description of the development process presented to the attendees.  None 
 
6.  A summary of attendee comments, ideas, suggestions from citizens to be incorporated into the 
development proposal: None 
 
 
 
 
                                     B. C. SMITH 
 
 
                               

7.K.c

Packet Pg. 126

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_N
ei

g
h

b
o

rh
o

o
d

M
ee

ti
n

g
sS

u
m

m
ar

y 
 (

S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

S
p

ec
ia

l U
se

 P
er

m
it

)



 27 Nov 23 
 
From: LT Brian C. Smith, Mrs. Lindsay Smith 
To: Camden County, NC Board of Commissioners 
 
Subj: Proposal Dialogue 
 
1.  This letter serves to communicate the information regarding the three requests submitted to 
the board for approval. 
 
2.  We are respectfully requesting you approve all 3 applications for the following reasons: 
 
 a.  Special Use Permit/UDO Text Addendum – We are requesting to bring our sawmill 
operation back to the property at 000 Upton Road.  The relocation of the sawmill would allow for 
us to mill lumber on site for our agriculture barn that we are currently planning to build in 2024 as 
well as mill lumber for other projects that we have planned for our farm.  We are also requesting to 
sell some of the additional lumber to help offset the costs of the farm and equipment as well.  We 
would like to locate the sawmill in the back of our property, near the future Camden well site and 
the current Mediacom operations building.  Locating the mill operation in the back of the property 
would help to keep a neat clean appearance from the road.   
 
 The Camden County UDO does not currently have any restrictions or guidance what so 
ever regarding the use of sawmills.  The UDO text addendum that we are requesting is geared 
towards small independent sawmill operators, like us, who want to provide products to the local 
community that you cannot find within the county or local counties.  The vast majority of 
sawmill work that we do is for agricultural projects since rough cut lumber cannot easily be used 
in residential applications.  This will allow farmers, who represent a large majority or Camden 
residents, to get extremely low priced lumber to the exact specifications that they need to operate 
their farms.   
 
 b.  Rezoning request – We are also requesting the entire property be rezoned to rural 
residential vice half rural residential and half neighborhood residential.  The current zoning of 
the property makes no sense since the area that is zoned neighborhood residential has zero road 
frontage and can only be accessed through the rural residential area.  We have no intent of ever 
subdividing this property for the purpose of selling lots therefore there is no reason for this 
property to be zoned neighborhood residential.   
 
 
3.  Concerns: 
 

a.  Noise – At the first neighborhood meeting, one resident, Tommy Harrison, said noise was 
one of his complaints with our proposal.  He specifically cited an instance on a Sunday 
where he heard beeping all day long.  After his complaint, I did research regarding decibel 
levels of my equipment and I found that the sawmill, while cutting a log, reached a decibel 
level of 75 when I was within 3 ft and the skid steer reached a decibel level of 76 when I 
was within 3 ft.  When I took decibel readings again at approximately 150 ft away both of 
these levels were under the county mandated 60 decibel rating to be considered a noise 
complaint.  This is one of the major reason why relocating the sawmill to the back of the 
property where it is surrounded by woods on 3 sides where houses are closest.  I estimate 
these houses to be approximately 150 feet from the proposed mill location as well.  The 
distance plus the trees in between the mill site and their house will ensure that their 
operation will not produce sound levels above 60 db.  The one piece of equipment that I 
use commonly that does produce noise levels above 60 db is a chainsaw.  Since the 
neighborhood meeting, I have purchased three battery operated chainsaws which I intend 

7.K.c

Packet Pg. 127

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_N
ei

g
h

b
o

rh
o

o
d

M
ee

ti
n

g
sS

u
m

m
ar

y 
 (

S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

S
p

ec
ia

l U
se

 P
er

m
it

)



to use primarily for operations.  These battery operated chainsaws do not produce a decibel 
level over 60 dbs.  There will be times when I must use a more powerful 2 stroke gasoline 
powered chainsaw and I recommend these times be limited to 8 am to 7 pm Monday to 
Saturday and 12 pm to 6 pm on Sunday.  As far as the specific instance that Mr. Harrison 
cited during our meeting, I’m assuming he was referring to when I rented an excavator and 
was clearing part of the land in anticipation of farming activities.  There are no noise 
regulations concerning farming activities in the county and I do not own nor do I use an 
excavator in conjunction with my sawmill.  My sawmill does not have a function to beep.  
My skid steer does have a beeping function, only in reverse, but I would never run my skid 
steer in reverse all day long in conjunction with sawmill activities as that makes no sense.   

 
b.  Property Value – Mr. Harrison also stated that he did not want the sawmill operation 

because he did not know how it would affect his property value.  I cannot see Mr. 
Harrison’s property from my property nor can you see my property from Mr. Harrison’s 
property.  I consider this to be a moot point. 

 
 

c. Traffic – Mr. Kight said his tenant was concerned with traffic and/or large trucks driving 
on the easement on the road that goes to the back of my property where the Mediacom 
building is located.  Only Mediacom employees and county employees going to the well 
site use this road.  I do not intend on using this as the main road to conduct sawmill 
operations.  I intend on using the long road that I built this year to conduct sawmill 
operations.  Also, sawmill operations generate far less traffic than the sunflower farm 
generates where you will see numerous cars pulling in and out of the driveway on a daily 
basis. 
 

4.  We intend to build our forever home on this property as soon as we have enough money 
saved for the substantial down payment.  We intend to continue farming for many years to come 
continuing to grow the sunflowers on the main areas visible from the road and are looking to add 
other things like blueberry and raspberry bushes.  In the near future and when we build our home 
there, we will add animals to the farm also. 
 
5.  Our family has resided in Camden County since 2015.  I have served in the United States 
Navy for 17 years now through several submarine tours, aircraft carrier tour and numerous tours 
both overseas and stateside in surface warfare and cyber warfare.  I have volunteered as a coach 
the past two years and will coach youth basketball this year with Camden County Parks and Rec 
both during the regular season and all-star tournaments.  Lindsay is a state and nationally 
certified pharmacy technician in both North Carolina and Virginia and is employed by UNC 
Medical Center.  She has coached youth basketball in the past for Camden County Parks and Rec 
and is currently on the Camden County Youth League Board.  All five of our children attend 
Camden county schools and excel.  All five made straight As last year and are involved in sports 
in both Parks and Rec and school sports.  We are a very tight knit community oriented family 
and we are asking that you pass these three applications to help us live our dream in Camden.  I 
will retire from the U.S. Navy in a few short years and intend to reside in Camden County for the 
rest of my days on this earth. 
 
6.  Thank you very much for your time and consideration regarding this matter. 
 
 
 
                                     B. C. SMITH 
 

7.K.c

Packet Pg. 128

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_N
ei

g
h

b
o

rh
o

o
d

M
ee

ti
n

g
sS

u
m

m
ar

y 
 (

S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

S
p

ec
ia

l U
se

 P
er

m
it

)



7.K.d

Packet Pg. 129

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_-
N

ei
g

h
b

o
rh

o
o

d
M

ee
ti

n
g

N
o

ti
ce

R
ec

ei
ve

d
  (

S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

S
p

ec
ia

l U
se

 P
er

m
it

)



7.K
.e

P
acket P

g
. 130

Attachment: 6_Deed  (Set Public Hearing - Application for Special Use Permit)



7.K
.e

P
acket P

g
. 131

Attachment: 6_Deed  (Set Public Hearing - Application for Special Use Permit)



7.K.f

Packet Pg. 132

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

_P
la

t 
 (

S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

S
p

ec
ia

l U
se

 P
er

m
it

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

 

Item Number: 10.A 

Meeting Date:   January 02, 2024 

 

Submitted By: Tammie Krauss, Register of Deeds 

 Register of Deeds 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Register of Deeds Report 

 

Attachments: Register of Deeds Report (PDF) 

 

10.A

Packet Pg. 133



10.A.a

Packet Pg. 134

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

eg
is

te
r 

o
f 

D
ee

d
s 

R
ep

o
rt

  (
R

eg
is

te
r 

o
f 

D
ee

d
s 

R
ep

o
rt

)



10.A.a

Packet Pg. 135

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

eg
is

te
r 

o
f 

D
ee

d
s 

R
ep

o
rt

  (
R

eg
is

te
r 

o
f 

D
ee

d
s 

R
ep

o
rt

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

 

Item Number: 10.B 

Meeting Date:   January 02, 2024 

 

Submitted By: Rodney Wooten, 

 Library 

 Prepared by: Rodney Wooten 

 
Item Title   Library Report 1223 YTD 

 

Attachments: 23-12 (DOCX) 

 

10.B

Packet Pg. 136



Camden County Public Library 

Fiscal YTD 2023 Statistics Report 
 

Visitor Count Fiscal YTD  9,512 

Materials Check Outs & Renewals 21,394 

Cloud Library Check Out (eBooks & audiobooks) 704 

Computer/ Wireless Use 1,540/1,407 

Questions Answered 722 

Children’s Programs/Attendance 70/1466 

Teen Program/Attendance 4/22 

Adult Programs/Attendance 11/102 

Outreach Programs/Attendance 4/230 

Study Room Usage/Attendance 200/297 

Meeting Room Usage/Attendance 12/171 

Days/Hours Open 122/1052 

# Items in Collection 21,722 

Library Card Holders 2,755 

 
Comparison by Year 

2021-2023 

  
           

 

 

5,465

7717

9,448

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

8,000

9,000

10,000

2021 YTD 2022 YTD 2023 YTD

Attendance

14,825

17,768

22,584

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

2021 YTD 2022 YTD 2023 YTD

Circulation

10.B.a

Packet Pg. 137

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

3-
12

  (
L

ib
ra

ry
 R

ep
o

rt
)


	Agenda Packet
	Call to Order
	Closed Session - Consultation with County Attorney
	Reconvene Board of Commissioners
	Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance
	1. Consideration of Agenda
	2. Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement
	3. Public Comments
	4. Old Business
	A. SMWA System Transfer and Purchase Agreement Update
	Printout: SMWA System Transfer and Purchase Agreement Update


	5. New Business
	A. Tax Report
	Printout: Tax Report
	a. November20231218104415885

	B. Resolution of Salaries & Compensation
	Printout: Resolution of Salaries & Compensation
	a. Salaries & Compensation 2023-2024


	6. Board Appointments
	A. Community Advisory Committee
	Printout: Community Advisory Committee
	a. Melissa MacKay CAC Orientation Training Status 20 hr 10 2023 (003)

	B. Regional Advisory Council
	Printout: Regional Advisory Council
	a. Regional Advisory Council Appointment Request

	C. Commissioner Advisory Board Appointments
	Printout: Commissioner Advisory Board Appointments
	a. Commissioner Advisory Boards_Current 2023


	Recess to South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors
	Reconvene Board of Commissioners
	7. Consent Agenda
	A. BOC Meeting Minutes
	Printout: BOC Meeting Minutes
	a. bocminutes_112823
	b. bocminutes_120423

	B. Budget Amendment
	Printout: Budget Amendment
	a. 23-24 BA 021 Full time Meter Reader for Water

	C. Pickups, Releases & Refunds
	Printout: Pickups, Releases & Refunds
	a. Pickups, Releases & Refunds

	D. Refunds Over $100.00
	Printout: Refunds Over $100.00
	a. REFUNDS OVER $100.00 DECEMBER, 2023

	E. School Budget Amendments
	Printout: School Budget Amendments
	a. School Budget Amendments

	F. Tax Collection Report
	Printout: Tax Collection Report
	a. Tax Collection Report

	G. Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00
	Printout: Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00
	a. VEHICLE REFUNDS OVER $100.00 NOVEMBER, 23

	H. Senior Center General Purpose Funding FY 23-24
	Printout: Senior Center General Purpose Funding FY 23-24
	a. Senior Center General Purpose Funding FY 2023-2024

	I. Set Public Hearing - Application for Zoning Map Amendment
	Printout: Set Public Hearing - Application for Zoning Map Amendment
	a. 1_AgendaSummary_SmithRezoningConsentAgenda
	b. 2_RezoningStaffReport
	c. 3_-ZoningMapAmendmentApplication
	d. 4_NeighborhoodMeetingsSummary
	e. 5_NeighborhoodMeetingNoticeReceived
	f. 6_Deed
	g. 7_Plat9-20

	J. Set Public Hearing - Application for Text Amendment
	Printout: Set Public Hearing - Application for Text Amendment
	a. 1-CA-AgendaSummary_TextAmendment
	b. 2-2023-10-84-_TextAmmendmentApp
	c. 3-OrdinanceForTextAmendments_2023-02-02

	K. Set Public Hearing - Application for Special Use Permit
	Printout: Set Public Hearing - Application for Special Use Permit
	a. 1_AgendaSummary_SmithSUP-ConsentAgenda
	b. 3-SUPApplication
	c. 4_NeighborhoodMeetingsSummary
	d. 5_-NeighborhoodMeetingNoticeReceived
	e. 6_Deed
	f. 7_Plat


	8. County Manager's Report
	9. Commissioners' Reports
	10. Information, Reports & Minutes from Other Agencies
	A. Register of Deeds Report
	Printout: Register of Deeds Report
	a. Register of Deeds Report

	B. Library Report
	Printout: Library Report
	a. 23-12


	11. Other Matters
	12. Adjourn 
	Next Regularly Scheduled Meeting - Monday, February 5th; 7:00 PM


	Appendix
	4.A · SMWA System Transfer and Purchase Agreement Update
	5.A · Tax Report
	5.A.a · November20231218104415885

	5.B · Resolution of Salaries & Compensation
	5.B.a · Salaries & Compensation 2023-2024

	6.A · Community Advisory Committee
	6.A.a · Melissa MacKay CAC Orientation Training Status 20 hr 10 2023 (003)

	6.B · Regional Advisory Council
	6.B.a · Regional Advisory Council Appointment Request

	6.C · Commissioner Advisory Board Appointments
	6.C.a · Commissioner Advisory Boards_Current 2023

	7.A · BOC Meeting Minutes
	7.A.a · bocminutes_112823
	7.A.b · bocminutes_120423

	7.B · Budget Amendment
	7.B.a · 23-24 BA 021 Full time Meter Reader for Water

	7.C · Pickups, Releases & Refunds
	7.C.a · Pickups, Releases & Refunds

	7.D · Refunds Over $100.00
	7.D.a · REFUNDS OVER $100.00 DECEMBER, 2023

	7.E · School Budget Amendments
	7.E.a · School Budget Amendments

	7.F · Tax Collection Report
	7.F.a · Tax Collection Report

	7.G · Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00
	7.G.a · VEHICLE REFUNDS OVER $100.00 NOVEMBER, 23

	7.H · Senior Center General Purpose Funding FY 23-24
	7.H.a · Senior Center General Purpose Funding FY 2023-2024

	7.I · Set Public Hearing - Application for Zoning Map Amendment
	7.I.a · 1_AgendaSummary_SmithRezoningConsentAgenda
	7.I.b · 2_RezoningStaffReport
	7.I.c · 3_-ZoningMapAmendmentApplication
	7.I.d · 4_NeighborhoodMeetingsSummary
	7.I.e · 5_NeighborhoodMeetingNoticeReceived
	7.I.f · 6_Deed
	7.I.g · 7_Plat9-20

	7.J · Set Public Hearing - Application for Text Amendment
	7.J.a · 1-CA-AgendaSummary_TextAmendment
	7.J.b · 2-2023-10-84-_TextAmmendmentApp
	7.J.c · 3-OrdinanceForTextAmendments_2023-02-02

	7.K · Set Public Hearing - Application for Special Use Permit
	7.K.a · 1_AgendaSummary_SmithSUP-ConsentAgenda
	7.K.b · 3-SUPApplication
	7.K.c · 4_NeighborhoodMeetingsSummary
	7.K.d · 5_-NeighborhoodMeetingNoticeReceived
	7.K.e · 6_Deed
	7.K.f · 7_Plat

	10.A · Register of Deeds Report
	10.A.a · Register of Deeds Report

	10.B · Library Report
	10.B.a · 23-12



